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1. Question: Are grant awards available to eligible counties proposing to provide counsel at first 
appearance by attorneys assigned through an assigned counsel plan?

Answer: Yes. Eligible counties seeking to provide mandated representation at first appearance by 
attorneys assigned through an assigned counsel plan may receive funding under this grant.
Indeed, the RFP directs counties to "submit a proposal that is developed through consultation 
with representatives of each of the County Law Article 18-B criminal defense providers in the 
county, including the person with administrative responsibility for overseeing the assigned counsel 
program." [Emphasis added] (see page 3). However, the attorneys must be assigned by an 
assigned counsel plan that the State Administrator (Chief Administrative Judge) has approved in 
accordance with County Law Section 722 (3).

2. Question: Two questions that should not compromise the competitiveness (they may already be 
answered but I do not see it):
1. How large is the total funding allocated to this solicitation?
2. Is there is a maximum number of awards.

Answer: (1) Total funding available for this grant is $12 million ($4 million per year for each of 
three years.) See page 4 of the RFP under Funding and Contract Period. (2) The maximum 
number of awards cannot exceed the number of counties in New York State that are eligible to 
apply for funds under this grant. See page 5 under Who Is Eligible to Apply for this Request for 
Proposals).

3. Question: Can the budget and/or work plan be revised or modified after the grant award?

Answer: Grant recipients are, in general, allowed a certain degree of latitude in making post
award budget revisions and programmatic (work plan) modifications to ensure efficient 
performance of the project. Revisions or modifications to the budget and work plan that support 
project operations occur for a variety of reasons. For example, additional funds may become 
available from line items in the budget, such as personnel, due to resignations or retirements, 
which may also affect project implementation. The grantee may reallocate funds within and 
between budget categories in the approved budget of the project to meet unanticipated 
requirements or to accomplish certain programmatic modifications. The work plan can also be 
modified based on process evaluation. Revisions or modifications to the budget or work plan 
must be requested in writing and approved by the Office of Indigent Legal Services, and may also 
require approval by the State Comptroller.

4. Question: Can the grant funds, or a portion thereof, be used to supplement salaries or pay 
overtime to current attorneys that work for institutional providers who would be willing to work 
additional hours to represent clients in person at arraignments in accordance with a plan that is 
adopted by the institutional provider, the County and the local courts?

Answer: Yes. Eligible counties seeking to provide representation at first appearance by 
supplementing salaries or payment of overtime to attorneys of current 18-B institutional providers



may receive funding under this grant. Page 3 of the RFP provides that "proposals are sought for 
the provision of direct, continuous representation to eligible persons through enhancement of 
existing services or creation of new and innovative approaches which address counsel at first 
appearance . . ." [Emphasis added]. However, the county must clearly demonstrate in its 
proposal that funding awarded for an enhancement of existing services will "supplement and not 
supplant local funds." (see page 10 of the RFP).

5. Question: The RFP states on page 4 that "proposals that make investigative services promptly 
available for pretrial detention issues are encouraged". This suggests that proposals that would 
provide for, or enhance, the provision of investigative services at any time prior to trial, not just at 
the time of first appearance, would be entertained and encouraged. On the other hand, this RFP 
is specifically targeted to counsel at first appearance. Is the referenced sentence intended to be 
applied only in conjunction with counsel at first appearance, or is it intended permit a much 
broader and continuing use of investigators well past the first appearance?

Answer: Since the purpose of the RFP is to "make demonstrable and measurable improvements 
in the delivery of indigent defense services to eligible persons at a defendant's first appearance 
before a judge," funding proposals that include investigative services should reflect this purpose. 
(See page 1 of the RFP). Indeed, the RFP provides that, "Specifically, proposals are sought . . . 
which address counsel at first appearance by means such as: . . . Improve investigation: Proposals 
that make investigation services promptly available for pretrial detention issues are encouraged." 
[Emphasis added] (see page 4 of RFP).

6. Question: In II(A)(5), which is on page 7, the question is "how would you assure effective 
representation for clients whose cases are resolved prior to trial?". This seems to ask a very broad 
question that goes far beyond the scope of this RFP, and on its face would include all of the ways 
in which we work towards effective representation in all cases that are resolved before trial, which 
would cover the vast majority of cases, and could include months of representation, involving 
motion practice, effective negotiation, discovery, investigation, ongoing development of client 
relationship, etc. While at least some of that starts at the arraignment, it goes far beyond that 
appearance. What is the intent of that requirement, and could you possibly rephrase it so as to 
focus it better on the specific objectives of this RFP?

Answer: Since the purpose of the RFP is to "make demonstrable and measurable improvements 
in the delivery of indigent defense services to eligible persons at a defendant's first appearance 
before a judge," proposals should promote effective representation at this stage of the 
proceedings. (see page 1 of RFP). On page 4, under the heading "Procedures for effective 
advocacy," proposals are sought to address counsel at first appearance that relate to, for example, 
allowing adequate time for counsel to obtain and use information from the client, charging 
documents, criminal history, and other available sources on the client's behalf with regard to 
entry of a not-guilty plea, bail/pretrial detention, and any other matter arising at arraignment." 
[Emphasis added]. Eligible counties may also utilize funding under this grant for promoting 
effective representation at proceedings subsequent to first appearance that involve matters 
arising at the defendant's first appearance.


